CITY OF RUSHVILLE

133 West 15 Street
Rushville, Indiana 46173
(765) 932-3735

MINUTES FOR THE MEETING OF THE RUSHVILLE

BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
April 18,2018
7:00P.M.

Call to Order: The Rushville Board of Zoning Appeals met on the above date and time at the Rushville Council
Chambers at 270 West |5th Street, Rushville, Indiana. Chairman Joe Rathz called the meeting to order at 7:17P.M.

ROLL CALL: Phil Brashaber, Jack Harmon, Jeff Houser, Jean Kopf, and Joe Rathz.
Consultant Shelly Wakefield, Attorney Grant Reeves and Deputy Director Carmen Clark were also in attendance.

MINUTES: Mr. Houser made a motion to approve the February 21st minutes. Mrs. Kopf seconded the motion. All
in favor. Motion carried.

Chairman Joe Rathz asked any person wishing to speak regarding the petitions to stand and be sworn in.
Old Business: None.

New Business:

Variance

18-V-13: the applicant, James Bloom, on behalf of Healthy Roots, is seeking a variance to allow an agricultural
organic farming, processing and distribution business in an M-2, Heavy Manufacturing District. The address is 1350
Commerce Drive.

Geoff Wesling, 205 N. Main Street, is the attorney representing James Bloom and Healthy Roots. Mr. Wesling
asked if the board so chooses, to allow the next petitioners to be placed before this petition.

Chairman Rathz asked if there was a motion. Mr. Harmon made a motion to place petitions 18-V-14 and 18-V-15
for Robert and Jessica McQuillen ahead of petition 18-V-13 on the agenda. Mr. Houser seconded the motion. All in
favor. Motion carried.

18-V-14 & 18-V-15 - Robert and Jessica McQuillen are requesting variances to exceed the allowable lot coverage
of 30% and a side yard setback of 7 feet from the required 10 feet. The address is 424 N. Main Street and the
property is zoned R-1, Single-Family Residential.

Mrs. McQuillen stated they wanted to place a semi in-ground pool in their back yard. They already received
approval from the Historic Board for the privacy fence. Mrs. McQuillen stated that the property is at 49% lot
coverage and when the 12x24 pool is installed, it will add 4% lot coverage for a total of 53%.

Chairman Rathz explained that there isn’t an issue with water run-off since over flow will go to a drain. Mrs.
McQuillen stated the bottom of the pool will be sand so it will be permeable.



Public Hearing: No one spoke at this time. Chairman Rathz closed the public comment.

Mr. Harmon stated this was unique and already a crowded lot Mr. Harmon does not disagree with the intent of
the ordinance. He agreed with Chairman Rathz regarding the water run-off that this variance was not going to
allow that to happen or do any harm. Mr. Harmon said that Mrs. McQuillen explained it well. Mr. Harmon felt that
the 3 stipulations had been met. Mr. Harmon made a motion to approve 18-V-14 for 53% lot coverage. Mr.
Houser seconded the motion. All in favor. Motion carried.

18-V-15- Mrs. McQuillen said the north setback request is for 7 feet from the required 10 feet. Mrs. McQuillen
stated she had spoken with her neighbors and they agreed to an easement to bury the power lines.

Public Hearing: No one spoke at this time. Chairman Rathz closed the public comment.

Mr. Houser made a motion to approve 18-V-15 based on the 3 criteria for the 7 foot setback instead of the
required 10 foot. Mr. Brashaber seconded the motion. All in favor. Motion carried.

Chairman Rathz informed the board they would be returning to petition 18-V-13 at this time.

Geoff Wesling, 205 N. Main Street, is attorney representing Jim Bloom, an agent for Healthy Roots, LLC. Mr.
Wesling was not a part of the application process but Mr. Bloom hired him because he felt he needed assistance in
this process. Mr. Wesling explained this is a unique request and there was some confusion on whether this was a
rezone for an agricultural use. But there is not an agricultural zoning in the ordinance. Mr. Wesling stated there is
some confusion in the process but Mr. Bloom is clear now that it is a use variance request. Mrs. Wakefield
explained that in the revised application it state several times that the request is for an agricultural zone. Mr.
Wesling reiterated that Mr. Bloom now understands that it is a use variance. Attorney Reeves asked staff if the
petition was advertised as a use variance. Ms. Clark said it had been advertised as such.

The plan is to grow fruits and vegetables all inside the building and to process fruits and vegetables. The processing
includes washing and packaging and storing for shipping. There is no livestock and there are no plans for livestock.
There will not be any animal manure but will be vegetative compost. Mr. Wesling was forwarded a complaint
regarding the compost. Mr. Bloom said they are an organic farm and part of that is a full conservation program.
You compost all your vital waste. Organic farming is repurposing and reusing everything. They plan to begin in the
spring a vegetative compost program with no manure. Mr. Bloom stated it would be no different than yard
clippings. They do not use any commercial fertilizer.

They are using 40,000 square feet of the property but plan to use the entire 300,000 square feet within the next 5
years. Healthy Roots employs 35 people now. The plan is to employ 60-70 in the fall and 100 employees by the
beginning of the year. Mr. Wesling said they want to be the largest indoor organic farm in the United States.

Mr. Houser asked the location of the employee parking. Mr. Bloom said the actual parking lot which is off
Commerce Drive. He said the plan is to use that entrance by the fall.

Public Hearing:

Robert Mueller, 416 E. 12* Street — asked if the organic compost is going to be temporary or full time. Mr. Bloom
said it will be full time but will move if it is a problem. Mr. Mueller stated he has already trapped a raccoon and
skunks. Mr. Bloom said his intention is to fence it but they haven’t had the opportunity yet.

Brad Schmitt, no address given — Mr. Schmitt sent the email regarding the compost odor. He stated he thinks the
organic farm is a great idea and fully supports it. But there was a rotten vegetable smell inside their building.
Chairman Rathz asked Mr. Bloom if this can be done inside. Mr. Bloom said organic farms don’t compost inside.
He stated he could look for another location.

Mr. Mueller asked about the employees using the 13™ Street entry. He stated in the mornings and evenings there is
a lot of traffic and they don’t stop at the stop sign. Chairman Rathz asked Mr. Bloom if this problem could be fixed
in 6 months. Mr. Bloom said the new entrance could be open 90 days. Mr. Bloom said there are policy and



procedures and discipline if the employees park in the alley.

Robert Newhouse, 904 E. | I Street — Mr. Newhouse stated he is on the Board of Directors for Harvest Land
Co-Op. He said he is in awe about Healthy Roots. He thinks it is fantastic and fabulous.

Chris Land, 1230 & 1234 N. Cherry Street — Mr. Land is glad that the building is in use but they put a new roof on
2 years ago and there are no gutters on the north side of the building. This is causing his driveway to be washed
out. Mr. Bloom stated the plan is to capture all of the water. He stated they have already put 1.6 million into the
building. Chairman Rathz asked if this could be repaired in 6 months. Mr. Bloom acknowledge it could.

John McCane, ECDC, 210 E. US 52 Suite C — Mr. McCane said he grew up in the neighborhood and he was the
Mayor in 1993 that sold the building to Jordan Manufacturing. They have invested a lot of money in the community.
Amazon was in the community to look at what Healthy Roots is doing. They are pioneers in this business. It is the
largest in the state and number 2 or 3 in the Midwest.

Public Hearing — Chairman Rathz closed the public comments at this time.

Mr. Harmon asked for Mr. Bloom to explain organic farming for “dummies”. Mr. Bloom said it is similar to
manufacturing. Healthy Roots does a hybrid of manufacturing. It is vertical farming that grows in tiers. It is
environmentally controlled to grow fast. Growing healthy food in an efficiently optimized fashion. There is no
season. Every week is harvest. Mr. Harmon asked about truck traffic on the property. Mr. Bloom stated there are
3 to 4 trucks per day. Bloom said once the business is good there would be |5 to 30 trucks per day usually in the
early morning and would be driving on Commerce Drive.

Mr. Reeves said conditions can be placed to clearly define what the variance is for. There are certain things they
can and can’t do on the property. The board can clearly state what the parameters are.

Mrs. Kopf asked about the traffic, parking and alley way problems. She inquired if they can put signage in place.
Chairman Ratz said they can go to the City and ask for signage to be installed and have the police watch for
speeding. Attorney Reeves said this cannot be added to the motion. Staff and the applicant can ask the City for
help with these issues.

Mr. Houser said that the property is currently zoned M-2, Heavy Manufacturing. He asked if they are asking for a
zoning change. Mr. Reeves stated that there cannot be a zoning change to agriculture since there isn’t an
agricultural zoning in the ordinance. Audience member Mr. Dehoney said he went to a zoning meeting last year for
this property. Ms. Clark said some of the parcels on this property had no zoning so the M-2 zoning was added at
that time.

Chairman Rathz said he had a few suggestions regarding the compost issue and repair to the property. He asked
Attorney Reeves if this can be time framed. Mr. Reeves said yes with conditions. Mr. Newhouse asked if this can
be reverted back in 6 months. Chairman Rathz answered no it cannot.

Mr. Wesling requested an indoor farm with the exclusion of livestock be put into the motion for the use variance.
Consultant Wakefield and Attorney Reeves stated that it cannot be added. The legal ad and application both stated
indoor organic farm.

Mrs. Kopf made a motion to approve 18-V-13 for the use variance to allow for an indoor organic farming
operation excluding livestock with the conditions that the compost will be addressed within 6 months, Commerce
Drive will be open and employees will be directed there within 90 days and within 6 months the water runoff on
the west side of the building will be addressed and will come back for review at the October 2018 meeting. Mr.
Houser seconded the motion. All in favor. Motion carried.

REPORTS:



Deputy Director: None.
Attorney: None.
Consultant: Mrs. Wakefield stated the BZA would need to have a work session to discuss an appellate court

decision regarding finds of fact. This will be a public meeting not a public hearing. After discussion amongst the
board it was decided to have the work session on Thursday, May 10* at 6:00pm.

ADJOURNMENT: Mr. Brashaber made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Houser seconded the motion. All in
favor. Meeting adjourned at 8:52 P.M.

e

v

Joe f{athz, Chairman

CCUW«Q{ ,ﬂﬁt@@u

Carmen Clark, Deputy Director




